Manage People



ReverseRisk

As a condition to viewing these materials, viewer expressly acknowledges and agrees that these materials contain confidential and proprietary information and trade secrets of ReverseRisk, LLC ("ReverseRisk"), and that all rights in and to the materials and information contained therein shall remain at all times the property of ReverseRisk. Further, viewer acknowledges that these materials and the information contained therein are copyrighted by ReverseRisk.

These materials are solely for use by current customers and employees of ReverseRisk, and any other use is strictly prohibited.

As a condition to viewing these materials, viewer agrees to keep these materials and the information contained therein strictly confidential; viewer agrees not to disclose or otherwise permit any other entity access to these materials; and viewer agrees not to copy, reproduce, or disseminate these materials to third parties. Viewer also agrees that review or disclosure of the information contained in these materials does not constitute a waiver or relinquishment of any rights or remedies related to ReverseRisk's confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information.

The information contained in these materials has been carefully checked and is believed to be accurate. However, ReverseRisk makes no representations or warranties regarding the materials and assumes no responsibility or liability for any inaccuracies that may be contained herein. In no event will ReverseRisk be liable for direct, indirect, special, exemplary, incidental, or consequential damages resulting from any defect or omission in these materials, even if advised of the possibility of such damages. In the interest of continued product development, ReverseRisk reserves the right to make improvements in these materials and the products it describes at any time, without notice or obligation.

It is the sole responsibility of the customer to determine the applicability of federal, state, and/or local laws, or other governmental requirements regarding the customer's use, retention, or documentation of data that may be maintained as part of customer's ReverseRisk services and to comply with such laws and requirements.

Table of Contents

Manage People Screen	1
Manage Existing People	
Add a Person	7
Associate a Person Record with a DMS ID	9
How to Add a Person Record	11
How to Add a Person Record for a Specific DMS ID Number	14
How to Modify a Person Record	16
Associating DMS IDs with a Person	16
Setting Up Site Access for a Person	17
Defining Store Access for a Person	17
Granting Special Permissions to Reports	17
How to Deactivate a Person Record	
Activating People	

Manage People Screen

The Manage People screen is used to add and edit person records in ReverseRisk[®]. Using this screen, you can define a person's access role, grant a person access to the appropriate stores, and reactivate people who were previously deactivated.

Only one person record can be created for each person at the dealership or group of dealerships. DMS IDs only need to be assigned to people who display on reports in ReverseRisk[®], such as sales managers and service advisors. Each person record must have a unique name.

To access the Manage People screen, select Settings > Manage People.

É	A	BC Where buy	ying a car as 1-2-3 A	BC Auto	plex [1073	3, 368, B]			Dave Smith 👤 adm	in logout	Reve	Reynolds Reynolds rseRisk
FAVC	RITES	SUMMAR	RIES	CASH AN	ALYSIS	INVENTORY	SALES & FI	FIXED	FORECAST	GROUP	SETTING	S
Mana	ge Pec	ople							Add Net	w Person A	l Regions 👻	Stores 🖵
Act	ive	Inactive	Missing) Employee	e	F	-ilter peopl	le by re	gion or sto	ore		_
Mana	ige Empl	oyees									Manager	
P	Albert W	Nam (achtel	ne		Sales Mana	Role	Filter pe	eople b	y specific	text	ti-Store	8
	Alexand	er Finn			Sales Mana	ger			772SM			8
P	Andrew	Ponce			Service Ma	nager						8
	Arthur M	lastin			Sales Mana	ger			276			8
P	Arthur T	homas			Finance Ma	nager			99FI			•
P	Becky M	lazi			Collision Ce	nter Manager						•
	Bradley	Copenhagen			Sales Mana	ger			564			•
	Brett St	evens			Finance Ma	nager			1930FI			•
P	Bryan Ai	mold			Sales Mana	ger			625			•
	Charlie L	ofgren			Finance Ma	nager			1960			•
	Christiar	n Odonnell			Finance Ma	nager			1843FI			•
	Danny Y	oung			Finance Ma	nager			1518			•
P	David La	anham			Finance Ma	nager			325			•
	Derek H	arr			Sales Mana	ger			630			•
	Douglas	Moore			Sales Mana	ger			665A			•
P	Drew Ca	arino			Office Mana	ager						•
	Erik Berg	gstrom			Sales Mana	ger			680S			•
	Felipe H	argreaves			Sales Mana	ger			263			•
	Fernand	o Rendon			Sales Mana	ger			9396			8
	Nathan I	Boyd			Sales Mana	ger			9824			0

People listed on the Manage People screen can be filtered by region or store using the **Regions** field or the **Stores** field. In addition, the **Filter Results** field can be used to display records based on whether the name or access role includes specific text. For example, enter **Manager** in this field to only display people with a manager access role.

Active Tab

This tab displays the active person records at all stores within the group. Using this tab, you can verify that the appropriate access roles and reports are defined.

THE REPORT OF TH	PTES CASH ANALYSIS			FORECAST		
	RIES CASITANALISIS	INVENTORT	SALLS & TI TIXLD	TORECAST	GROUP SL	TINGS
nage People				Add Ne	w Person All Regio	ns 🔽 Stores
Active Inactive	Missing Employee					
Click/Tap to Select	м	anager	Edit Person		Save Cha	inges Close
Name	Role	DMS ID	Andrew			
lbert Wachtel	Sales Manager	276M	Ponce			
Alexander Finn	Sales Manager	772SM	johhsmith@dealershipgro	oup.com		
Andrew Ponce	Service Manager		415-555-7309			
Arthur Mastin	Sales Manager	276	Access Bole: S	ervice Manager		
arthur Thomas	Finance Manager	99FI		•		
ecky Mazi	Collision Center Manager		Employee DMS ID #'s	d to be defined for	a direttine selet to the t	
radley Copenhagen	Sales Manager	564	NOTE: DMS IDS ONLY NEE serv	ice advisor, parts cour	ouuctive roles, le: sale: hterperson, etc	s consultants,
Brett Stevens	Finance Manager	1930FI				
3ryan Arnold	Sales Manager	625				
Charlie Lofgren	Finance Manager	1960	•			
Site Access			Store Access			
ponceand			Locatio	n	Has Access	Admin
			ABC Honda			
			ABC Toyota			
			ABC Chevrolet/Mazda			
Save Credentials	s Revok	ke Site Access	ABC Autoplex			
Reports Granted to Servic	e Manager		Grant Special Permissio	ons		
Show Breakdowns			Account Map Recon		Grant Repor	t Access
Rep	port	Department	Peports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission	
Rep Daily Service/Parts	port	Department	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts • Fixed Forecast	port	Department	Reports Currently Gran Report	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Trixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit	port	Department	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Prixed Forecast Frixed Gross Profit Frixed Summary	Jort	Department	Reports Currently Gran Report	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Advisc	ort or	Department	Reports Currently Gran Report	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Advisc Individual Summary Advisc Inventory Open ROs	ort	Department	Reports Currently Gran Report	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Advisc Inventory Open ROs DP Code Tracker	port	Department	Reports Currently Gran Report	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso nventory Open ROS DP Code Tracker Dpen Repair Orders	port	Department	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Difyed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso nventory Open ROS DP Code Tracker Dpen Repair Orders Parts Counterman Sales	ort	Department	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts P Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso nventory Open ROs P Code Tracker Open Repair Orders Parts Counterman Sales Parts Wholesale Analysis	ort	Department	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Difyed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Advisc nventory Open ROs P Code Tracker Den Repair Orders Parts Counterman Sales Parts Wholesale Analysis 	port	Department	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso nventory Open ROS DP Code Tracker DP Code Tracker DP Code Tracker DP Code Tracker Corecast Access Election	ort or Can Edit	Can Add/Del	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso nventory Open ROS DP Code Tracker DP Code Tracker DP Code Tracker DP Code Tracker Corecast Access Forecast Access Forecast - NCD & UCD Sales	ort Can Edit	Can Add/Del	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso nventory Open ROS P Code Tracker Open Repair Orders Parts Counterman Sales Parts Counterman Sales Parts Wholesale Analysis Forecast Access Location Forecast - NCD & UCD Sales Fixed Forecast	orr Can Edit	Can Add/Del	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts P Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso nventory Open ROS P Code Tracker Open Repair Orders P Code Tracker D Code T D	orr Can Edit	Can Add/Del	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Daily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso nventory Open ROS P Code Tracker Den Repair Orders tarts Counterman Sales tarts Counterman Sales tarts Wholesale Analysis orecast Access Cocation orecast - NCD & UCD Sales ixed Forecast ody Shop Forecast xpense Forecast	or Can Edit	Can Add/Del	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	
Rep Paily Service/Parts Fixed Forecast Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Gross Profit Fixed Summary Individual Summary Adviso Inventory Open ROS P Code Tracker Inventory Open ROS P Code Tracker Inventory Open ROS P Code Tracker Inventory Open ROS Inventory Open ROS Inv	or Can Edit	: Can Add/Del	Reports Currently Gran	ted By Special Perr	nission Department	

Manage Existing People

When the Manage People screen is accessed, a list of active person records displays. To review additional details for a person record or make changes, click the person record.

	TO Where buy		[107	2 262 21					Reynolds & Keynolds
		ABC AUTO	PIEX [10/0, 500, 5]			1	Dave Smith 보 adm	in logout	ReverseRisk
FAVORITES	S SUMMAR	IES CASH AN	ALYSIS	INVENTORY	SALES & FI	FIXED	FORECAST	GROUP	SETTINGS
Manage Po	eople						Add Net	w Person) All Re	egions 👻 Stores 👻
Active	Inactive	Missing Employe	e						
Manage Em	ployees							Ма	nager
	Nam	e		Role		Email	DMS ID	Multi-S	tore
Albert	Wachtel		Sales Man	ager			276M		۵
Alexar	ider Finn		Sales Man	ager			772SM		0
Andre	w Ponce		Service Ma	anager					0
Arthur	Mastin		Sales Man	ager			276		0
🔎 Arthur	Thomas		Finance Manager				99FI	0	
P Becky	Mazi		Collision C	enter Manager					8
Bradle	y Copenhagen		Sales Man	ager			564		0
Brett	Stevens		Finance M	anager			1930FI		0
🔎 Bryan	Arnold		Sales Man	ager			625		0
Charlie	e Lofgren		Finance M	anager			1960		8
Christ	ian Odonnell		Finance M	anager			1843FI		8
Danny	Young		Finance M	anager			1518		8
🔎 David	Lanham		Finance M	anager			325		8
Derek	Harr		Sales Man	ager			630		8
Dougl	as Moore		Sales Man	ager			665A		8
P Drew	Carino		Office Mar	ager					8
Erik B	ergstrom		Sales Man	ager			680S		•
Felipe	Hargreaves		Sales Man	ager			263		0
Fernar	ndo Rendon		Sales Man	ager			9396		8
Natha	n Boyd		Sales Man	ager			9824		8

The following details display for each employee record.

- P (Person Has Site Access): This column displays the P (Person Has Site Access) icon if the person has access to ReverseRisk[®]. If this icon does not display for a person, the person is included on reports in ReverseRisk[®] but cannot access ReverseRisk[®].
- Name: This column displays the person's first and last name, as defined in ReverseRisk[®].
- Role: This column displays the access role assigned to the person.



Access roles are used to provide people with access to the reports they are likely to use, based on the typical job duties of each access role. Special permissions can be defined to provide a person with access to additional reports.

- Email: This column displays the Internet Email address of the person, as defined in ReverseRisk[®].
- DMS ID: This column displays the DMS IDs for the person.
- Multi-Store: This column displays a ☑ (Checkmark) if the person has access to multiple stores in ReverseRisk[®].
- **M** (Email User): This unlabeled column displays the **M** (Email User) icon. Click this icon to send an Email message to the person that includes his user name and password for accessing ReverseRisk[®].



This icon only displays if an Internet Email address has been defined for the person and the person has access to ReverseRisk[®].

• 😢 (Deactivate): This unlabeled column displays the 😢 (Deactivate) icon that can be clicked to deactivate a person. When a person is deactivated, they cannot access ReverseRisk[®]. In addition, only their DMS ID displays on reports.

When a person record is clicked, additional sections display on the Active tab that can be used to define other settings, such as store access and special permissions. The list of active people remains on screen in the Click/Tap to Select section, allowing you to easily select additional people records as needed.

) <i>I</i>	ABC 12 Marca	THE TRANSPORT	toplex [107:	3, 368, BJ			Dave Smith 보 adm	in logout	ReverseR
VORITES	SUMMA	RIES CASH	ANALYSIS	INVENTORY	SALES & FI	FIXED	FORECAST	GROUP	SETTINGS
nage Pe	eople						Add Ne	w Person) All R	egions 🖵 Store
Active	Inactive	Missing Employ	/ee						
Click/Tap	to Select		Man	ager	Edit Person	I		Save	Changes Clos
	Namo	ſ	ele.	DMS ID	Andrew				
bert Wacht	tel	Sales Manager		276M	Ponce				
exander Fi	nn	Sales Manager		772SM	johhsmith@de	alershipgrou	p.com		
ndrew Pone		Service Manager		772011	415-555-7309				
thur Masti	n	Sales Manager		276		no Dolari Car	Nanczer		
thur Thom	as	Finance Manager		99FI	Acce	ss Kole: [Sel	vice ivialiager		
ecky Mazi		Collision Center I	Manager		Employee D	MS ID #'s (0		Add DMS
radley Con	enhagen	Sales Manager	J -	564	Note: DMS I	Ds only need servic	to be defined for pr e advisor, parts cour	oductive roles, ie: hterperson, etc	sales consultants,
rett Stever	IS	Finance Manager		1930FI			, p		
rvan Arnolo	1	Sales Manager		625					
harlie Lofar	en	Finance Manager		1960	-				
******	Save Credentia	s)	Revoke	Site Access)	ABC Toyota ABC Chevrolet ABC Autoplex	/Mazda		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
Show Bre	anted to Servic akdowns	e Manager			Grant Special	Permission	15	Count Da	
	Rep	port		Department	Account Ma	5 Recon			port Access
aily Service	e/Parts				Reports Curre	ently Grant	ed By Special Perr	nission	
Fixed Fore	ecast				Rep	ort		Department	
Fixed Gro	ss Profit								
Fixed Sum	nmary								
Individual	Summary Advis	or							
nventory O	pen ROs								
P Code Tra	acker								
pen Repair	Orders								
arts Counte	erman Sales								
arts Whole:	sale Analysis				-				
	ccess								
orecast A	Location		Can Edit	Can Add/Del					
orecast A	CD & LICD Salas								
orecast A	GD GLOGD GAICS								
orecast A orecast - N ixed Foreca	ist			_					
orecast A orecast - N ixed Foreca ody Shop F	ob d oob dies ist forecast								
orecast A orecast - N xed Foreca ody Shop F <pense for<="" td=""><td>ecast</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></pense>	ecast								

The sections that display on the Active tab vary based on whether the selected person has access to ReverseRisk[®] or is only listed on reports.

Only one person record can be created for each person at the dealership or group of dealerships. DMS IDs only need to be assigned to people who display on reports in ReverseRisk[®], such as sales managers and service advisors. Each person record must have a unique name.

• Edit Person: This section is used to modify basic information for the person, such as the Email address, phone number, and access role.



Access roles are used to provide people with access to the reports they are likely to use, based on the typical job duties of each access role. Special permissions can be defined to provide a person with access to additional reports.

• Employee DMS ID #'s: This section is used to associate people with DMS IDs. When a DMS ID is associated with a person record, the corresponding person name displays on reports.

Report information and the corresponding person's DMS ID numbers are automatically imported from the DMS to ReverseRisk[®]. To include person names on reports in ReverseRisk[®], the DMS ID numbers must be associated with person records. If a person has multiple DMS IDs for different access roles, each DMS ID number can be associated with a single person record in ReverseRisk[®].

- Setup Site Access button: This button is used to grant the person access to ReverseRisk[®]. When this button is clicked, the Site Access section displays, where you can create a user name and password for the person.
- Site Access: (People with ReverseRisk[®] Access Only) This section is used to update the person's user name and password. In addition, you can remove the person's site access by clicking Revoke Site Access. Information for the person continues to display on reports; however, the person does not have access to ReverseRisk[®].
- Store Access: (*People with ReverseRisk® Access Only*) This section is used to grant and remove access to stores in the group. In addition, you can grant access to system administrator functions by selecting the Admin check boxes for the appropriate stores.
- Reports Granted to (Access Role): (People with ReverseRisk[®] Access Only) This section displays the reports that are available for the person to view based on the access role assigned to the person.



The Enhanced Administration Page screen is used to define which reports are available to each access role. To access this screen, select Settings > Report Roles.

• Grant Special Permissions: (*People with ReverseRisk® Access Only*) This section is used to grant access to reports and functions that are not automatically granted based on the assigned access role. When special permissions are granted, they display in the Reports Currently Granted By Special Permission section.

Special permissions can be revoked by clicking the \bigotimes (Delete) icon for the report or function.

• Forecast Access: (*People with ReverseRisk® Access Only*) This section is used to grant or remove the person's access to create, change, and/or delete forecasts for each area of the dealership.

Add a Person

To add a person on the Manage People screen, click Add New Person. The Create New Person section displays, where you can define person details.

AVORITES	SUMMAR	RIES CASH ANALYS	IS INVENTORY	SALES & FI	FIXED	FORECAST	GROUP	SETTINGS		
anage Peop	le					Add N	New Person	All Regions - Stores		
Active	Inactive	Missing Employee				Add		J		
Click/Tap to S	elect		Filter Results	Create Nev	w Person	Add a	a persoi	Add Person Close		
Nom	<u>_</u>	Dolo	DMS ID	Donald						
Aaron Anderson	e	Parts Consultant	1578	Hinkle						
Adam Nichols		Sales Consultant	364	donald.hinkle	e@isp.net					
Aden Dickson		Service Technician	9525	7135550184						
Adrian Peters		Service Advisor	4610	Acc	cess Role: Fir	nance Manager				
Aidan Neil		Service Technician	619	Employee D	MS ID (option	al)				
Alan Dorsey		Sales Consultant	1842	Employee D		<u>۸</u>				
Albert Mulligan		Service Technician	1618			/_				
Albert Wachtel		Sales Manager	276M	Create New Person section						
Alex Nguyen		Service Technician	9635		L					
Amy Wilkerson		Service Technician	585	-						

For a detailed procedure on adding a person record, refer to <u>How to Add a Person</u> <u>Record</u>.

Inactive Tab

This tab displays people who were previously deactivated in ReverseRisk[®]. Using the Inactive tab, you can review basic person information and reactivate a person as needed to include them on reports or create a user record.

A	BC Where buy	ning a car ABC Au	utoplex [107	73, 368, B]					R. &I	eynolds Reynolds
Dave Smith 1 ad								admin logout	Revers	seRisk
FAVORITES	SUMMAR	IES CASH	ANALYSIS	INVENTORY	SALES & F	I FIXED	FORECAST	GROUP	SETTINGS	
Manage Peo	ple								Add New F	Person
Active	Inactive	Missing Empl	oyee							
Manage Emplo	oyees								Filter Results	
	Name			Role		Email	DMS ID	Multi	-Store	
Christopher Riva	IS		Finance Mana	ager			1492			+
Owen Delaney			Service Manager				9226		~	+
Return to Top							SUPPORT	© Axcessa 200	7, 2016 - Patent	Pending

The following details display for each person record.

- Name: This column displays the person's first and last name, as defined in ReverseRisk[®].
- Role: This column displays the access role assigned to the person.



Access roles are used to provide people with access to the reports they are likely to use, based on the typical job duties of each access role. Special permissions can be defined to provide a person with access to additional reports.

- Email: This column displays the Internet Email address of the person, as defined in ReverseRisk[®].
- DMS ID: This column displays the DMS IDs for the person.
- Multi-Store: This column displays a ☑ (Checkmark) if the person has access to multiple stores in ReverseRisk[®].
- **+** (**Reactivate**): This column displays the **+** (Reactivate) icon that can be clicked to reactive a person record.

Missing Employee Tab

This tab displays the DMS IDs for the selected store that are not associated with a person record in ReverseRisk[®]. Using this tab, you can easily associate a DMS ID with a person record.

ABC Autoplex [1073, 366, B]											
O ADO interprise	Dave Smith 👤	admin logout	ReverseRisk								
FAVORITES SUMMARIES CASH #	ANALYSIS INVENTORY	SALES & FI	FIXED	FORECAST	GROUP	SETTINGS					
Manage People		Add New Person									
Active Inactive Missing Emplo	yee										
Important: Missing employees are only pulled for the currently selected store/location Filter Results											
DMS ID			Role								
695	Finance Manager										
698	Finance Manager										
889	Parts Consultant										
890	Parts Consultant										
893	Parts Consultant										
725	Sales Consultant										
Return to Top				SUPPORT	© Axcessa 200)7, 2016 - Patent Pending					

The following details display for each person record.

- DMS ID: This column displays the DMS IDs for the person.
- Role: This column displays the access role assigned to the person.



Access roles are used to provide people with access to the reports they are likely to use, based on the typical job duties of each access role. Special permissions can be defined to provide a person with access to additional reports.

Associate a Person Record with a DMS ID

To create a person record for a missing DMS ID, select a DMS ID on the Missing Employee tab. The Create Profile for Employee #NNN (Access Role) section displays, where "NNN" is the DMS ID and "(Access Role)" is the dealership access role selected. The dealership access role is automatically entered in the Access Role field, and the DMS ID is automatically entered in the DMS ID field.

Create Profile for Employee #648 (Finance Manager)	Close Add Person
John	
Smith	
johhsmith@dealershipgroup.con Access Role field	
Access Role: Finance Manager DMS II	D field
648	

Add the person's name, Email address, and phone number. Then verify the access role and click **Add Person**. A person record is added for the DMS ID, allowing the person name to be matched with the appropriate report data.

How to Add a Person Record

The Active tab on the Manage People screen is used to add a new person record to ReverseRisk[®] and associate a dealer management system (DMS) ID with the person.

Only one person record can be created for each person at the dealership or group of dealerships. DMS IDs only need to be assigned to people who display on reports in ReverseRisk[®], such as sales managers and service advisors. Each person record must have a unique name.

1. Access the Manage People screen.



The Manage People screen is accessed using the following path: Settings \rightarrow Manage People.

2. Click Add New Person.

The Create New Person section displays on the Active tab.

- 3. In the unlabeled First Name field, enter the first name of the person.
- 4. In the unlabeled Last Name field, enter the last name of the person.
- 5. In the unlabeled Email field, enter the Internet Email address for the person.
- 6. In the unlabeled Phone Number field, enter the person's phone number.

The phone number must be entered in the following format: XXX-XXX-XXX.

7. In the Access Role field, enter the dealership access role for the person.

Click the Down Arrow to display a list of valid entries.

8. (Optional) In the Employee DMS ID field, enter the DMS ID for the person.

Report information and the corresponding person's DMS ID numbers are automatically imported from the DMS to ReverseRisk[®]. To include person names on reports in ReverseRisk[®], the DMS ID numbers must be associated with person records. If a person has multiple DMS IDs for different access roles, each DMS ID number can be associated with a single person record in ReverseRisk[®]. 9. Click Add Person.

A record is added for the person, and the Employee DMS ID #'s section and the **Setup Site Access** button display.

(Optional) To associate the person with additional DMS IDs, click Add DMS ID.

For more information on associating people with additional DMS IDs, refer to Associating DMS IDs with a Person.

11. To grant the person access to ReverseRisk[®] and set up ReverseRisk[®] credentials, click **Setup Site Access**.

The Site Access section displays. Proceed to step 12.

- or -

To add the person without granting access to ReverseRisk[®], proceed to step 19.

- 12. In the Site Access section, define a user name and password for the person.
- 13. Click Save Credentials.

The user name is saved for the person.

- 14. In the Store Access section, select the **Has Access** check box to grant access to stores in the group.
- 15. Select the **Admin** check box to grant access to system administrator functions for the corresponding stores.
- 16. *(Optional)* In the Grant Special Permissions section, grant the person access to reports that are not automatically granted based on the person's assigned access role, as needed.

For more information on granting special permissions to reports, refer to <u>Granting Special Permissions to Reports</u>.

- 17. Select the **Can Edit** check box in the Forecast Access section to grant access to change forecasts for each area of the dealership.
- 18. Select the **Can Add/Del** check box in the Forecast Access section to grant access to create or delete forecasts for each area of the dealership.

19. Once all updates have been made, click **Save Changes** in the Edit Person section.

The record is saved.

How to Add a Person Record for a Specific DMS ID Number

The Missing Employee tab on the Manage People screen is used to review the dealer management system (DMS) ID numbers not currently associated with a person record. This tab can be used to create a new person record based on the employee number from the DMS.

1. Access the Manage People screen.



2. Click the Missing Employee tab.

The Missing Employee tab displays all DMS ID numbers not currently associated with a person record.

3. Click a DMS ID to add a person record for the corresponding DMS ID.

The Create Profile for Employee #NNN (Access Role) section displays, where "NNN" is the DMS ID and "(Access Role)" is the dealership access role selected. The dealership access role is automatically entered in the Access Role field, and the DMS ID is automatically entered in the DMS ID field.

- 4. In the unlabeled First Name field, enter the first name of the person.
- 5. In the unlabeled Last Name field, enter the last name of the person.
- 6. In the unlabeled **Email** field, enter the Internet Email address for the person.
- 7. In the unlabeled **Phone Number** field, enter the person's phone number.



8. In the Access Role field, enter the access role for the person.

Click the Down Arrow to display a list of valid entries.



Access roles are used to provide people with access to the reports they are likely to use, based on the typical job duties of each access role. Special permissions can be defined to provide a person with access to additional reports.

9. Click Add Person.

A record is added for the person, and the **Setup Site Access** button displays. For more information on setting up site access for the person, refer to <u>Setting</u> <u>Up Site Access for a Person</u>.

How to Modify a Person Record

The Active tab on the Manage People screen is used to modify a person record and deactivate a person record. For more information on deactivating a person record, refer to <u>How to Deactivate a Person Record</u>.

1. Access the Manage People screen.

The Manage People screen is accessed using the following path: Settings \rightarrow Manage People.

2. Select a person record.

The person record displays.

- 3. In the Edit Person section, modify the person name, Internet Email address, phone number, and dealership access role as necessary.
- Modify associated dealer management system (DMS) IDs, site access, store access, report access, and so on as necessary. For more information on adjusting these settings, refer to the following Advanced Topics.
- 5. Click Save Changes.

The changes are saved, and a message window displays, indicating the person record is updated.

Advanced Topics

Associating DMS IDs with a Person

Multiple DMS IDs can be associated with an existing person record using the Employee DMS ID #'s section on the Manage People screen. To associate a new DMS ID with a person, access the person record and click Add DMS ID in the Employees DMS ID #'s section. Then enter the DMS ID, dealership access role, and store, and click Save. The information is saved for the person, and additional DMS IDs can be associated with the person record as needed. To remove a DMS ID from a person record, click Remove.

Ľ

Report information and the corresponding person's DMS ID numbers are automatically imported from the DMS to ReverseRisk[®]. To include person names on reports in ReverseRisk[®], the DMS ID numbers must be associated with person records. If a person has multiple DMS IDs for different access roles, each DMS ID number can be associated with a single person record in ReverseRisk[®].

Setting Up Site Access for a Person

The Site Access section on the Manage People screen is used to grant a person access to ReverseRisk[®]. To grant access for the person, access the person record on the Manage People screen and click Setup Site Access. Fields display for defining a User ID and password for the person. Enter the user name for the person and enter a password used to sign on to ReverseRisk[®] for the person.

Ð

A password must be at least six characters in length and include both letters and numbers. In addition, if the passwords entered in the Password field and the Confirm Password field do not match, a red border displays on these fields. When matching passwords are entered, a green border displays.

Click **Save Credentials** to save the entered user name and password, and grant the corresponding person access to ReverseRisk[®]. If an Email address is defined for the person, click the *(Email User)* icon on the Active tab on the Manage People screen to send an Email message to the person that includes the user name and password needed for accessing ReverseRisk[®].

Defining Store Access for a Person

The Store Access section on the Manage People screen is used to define which stores within the dealership group are accessible to a person. To grant access to a specific store, select the corresponding Has Access check box in the Store Access section. To save the changes, click **Save Changes** in the Edit Person section.

When a person is granted access to multiple stores in ReverseRisk[®], a 🜌 (Checkmark) displays in the Multi-Store column on the Active tab on the Manage People screen.

Granting Special Permissions to Reports

The Reports Granted To (Role) section displays all reports granted to a person based on the role defined for the employee. To grant a person access to additional reports not associated with his access role, access the person record on the Manage People screen.

In the Grant Special Permissions section, select the report for which to grant access to the person and click Grant Report Access. The report displays in the Reports Currently Granted By Special Permission section.

Click the 😢 (Delete) icon in the Reports Currently Granted By Special Permission section to remove access to the corresponding report.

How to Deactivate a Person Record

The Manage People screen is used to deactivate person records. When a person is deactivated, they cannot access ReverseRisk[®]. In addition, only their DMS ID displays on reports.

1. Access the Manage People screen.

The Manage People screen is accessed using the following path: Settings \rightarrow Manage People.

2. Click the 🔇 (Delete) icon to deactivate the corresponding person record.

A message window displays, confirming the person record is to be deactivated.

3. Click Deactivate Person to deactivate the person record.

The person record is deactivated, is removed from the Active tab, and displays on the Inactive tab.

Advanced Topics

Activating People

Deactivated person records can be activated using the Inactive tab on the Manage People screen. To activate a person record that has been previously deactivated, click the + (Activate) icon corresponding to the person record. A message window displays, confirming the person record is to be activated. Click Activate Person to activate the person record. The person record is activated, is removed from the Manage Employees section on the Inactive tab, and displays on the Active tab.